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Dorguth Memorial, built in 1857, is a simple, two-story brick church of the late
Roman Revival style. A gabled roof with a pedimented brick cornice caps the building.
Four brick pilasters divide the front facade into three bays. The central bay houses
two round-arched windows on the upper story and a centered door with a round-arched
transom at the street level. The side bays contain flat-topped windows in set and
recessed panels divided by pilasters. A1l the windows have more recently installed
Gothic-pointed stained glass. Four large windows of the upper story of the side facade
are similarly decorated. A parish house of the same styling, added in 1868, is located
at the rear of the south side of the church.

Dorguth Memorial originally served the early nineteenth century working class
community of Pigtown, a name referring to the concentration of many butchers.

The community has recently fallen on hard times, but the restoration efforts
of the Barre Circle Homesteading District are located only several blocks north of
the church.

The main body of the church is on the second floor. There is a wide center aisle
and narrow aisles on the side. At the front of the church is a recessed arch in which
the altar stands with a large painting of Christ above it. The arch is flanked by
windows, and the area before it is separated from the rest of the church by a railing.
A balcony supported by cast-iron columns stretches across the rear of the church, on
the Scott Street side. Stairs on the Scott Street side Tead from street level up to
the church. The space below the church is used for meetings; there are slim, cast-iron
columns here supporting the structure above.

Although the surrounding Pigtown or Washington Hills neighborhood has a good
sample of buildings from about the 1850s to the early 20th century and may be eligible
for the National Register, up to this time the community has not advocated historic
district designation. The community is largely a working class one and has not taken
much concern with historic preservation and the retention of the architectural
characteristics of the neighborhood. In the future, with the community's support,
historic district designation may be feasible. The Walter's Bath House Number 2 has
been 1isted on the Register and is being rehabilitated for a social services agency.

A library branch next to the Walter's Bath House has been housed in a late 19th
century building. Also, two neighborhoods to the east, Ridgely's Delight and Barre
Circle haye been found to be eligible for the National Register. Until this community .
actively seeks historic designation, as has been the case with Barre Circle and Ridgely's
Delight, it makes more sense to nominate the church individually.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Dorguth Memorial Church owes much of its initial success to the hard work and
determination of Nehemiah Altman, Dorguth's first pastor. Altman, born in Mosbach,
Baden, Germany of very wealthy and pious Jewish parents, initially studied to be a
rabbi. Being desirous of have complete knowledge of the Scriptures for the sake of
his people, he undertook a thorough study of both the 01d and New Testaments. After
much study and travail of soul, these efforts Ted Altman to Christianity where he would
spend his Tife's work.

After immigrating to America and joining the United Brethren Church, Altman
ultimately felt a call to the ministry. His first sermon was preached at the parsonage
of the Otterbein Church, a German church of South Baltimore. In October, 1855, a
group of members from Otterbein led by Altman met for the purpose of forming an English
congregation. The church gave a lot of ground 133 feet by 66 feet from their cemetery
on Scott and St. Peters (presently Carroll) Streets on which to build. The new chapel
was incorporated "The Otterbein's Chapel of the United Brethren in Christ." Most of .
the task of collecting money for the building fell on Altman, and the construction of
the building was entrusted to Christian Gerber, a local carpenter. The cornerstone was
laid on June 30, 1857 and Altman served as the first pastor (1855-1859).

It seems that the church has never been popularly known by its legal name. It
was first termed "The Baltimore English Mission," When the church became self-supporting
in 1870 and petitioned the Conference to give it the status of "Station," this name
changed to "Otterbein Chapel Station." During the early part of the twentieth century
it was called "The Scott Street United Brethren Church.” Presently, the church is
popularly known as "The Dorguth Memorial United Methodist Church."

SIGNIFICANCE . . . .
—_Dorguth Memorial represents a simple and typical example of an early nineteenth
century church of the Roman Revival style. It is among the last of this type of church
still in use in Baltimore.

The church has remained in the community for 122 years. It was the center of the
community when Pigtown was merely a village, and it remains the center of the community
as an urban neighborhood. It has also remained important to a community which has
changed from a largely middle income neighborhood in its early history to the predominantly
working class community it is today.

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #1.



EJMA]JOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Reichert, Mrs. Alberta L. and Mund, Reverend Frederick W. History of the Scott
Street United Brethren Church: 1857-1937.

E)GEOGRAPHICAL DATA
ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY _LESS than one acre

UTM REFERENCES

Alusgl lasds1d [4.3la.90 50 1 U O PR ) EP P

ZONE EASTING NORTHING ZONE EASTING NORTHING i

Cl_]__lLllIll"lllllll Dll‘lllllj‘ll’leJl] :

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
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(SIGNIFICANCE, Continued)

The church has functioned throughout its years to serve the social and religious
needs of Pigtown or Washington Village. It housed a public school in the 1870s;
sheltered the wounded of the Civil War; held bazaars, raffles, and festivals for
many of its years; it has baptized; married, and held funeral services for thousands
of residents throughout 122 years; and today it is playing an important role in the
revitalization of the neighborhood in working to establish the Washington Village
Urban Renewal Area.

The church is significant in the role of the mother church to Salem Church in
1874 and the Franklin Street United Brethren Church in 1894. These congregations later
merged into Christ Church.

The church is also important as an example of an early break from the German
Otterbein Church to form an English speaking congregation. It represents the
Americanization of the United Brethren denomination in Baltimore.




